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The Elks Lodge Building is a five-story limestone office 
building measuring 105' x 144 ! . The dominant architectural style 
is Italian Renaissance. The ground level facade consists of a 
series of window and entryway openings and blocks of cut limestone. 
Above the openings, and formed by limestone blocks, are flatened 
arches. The shape of the blocks is accented by deep reveals.

The second level has a symmetrically arranged row of double- 
arched windows. A minor engaged column separates the windows in 
each bay, while a major engaged column separates e.ach bay. Above 
the window units are larger arches filled with red tile and a medallion 
Also adorning these windows are projecting wrought-iron balconies. 
Above the third level, which is marked only by a row of rectangular 
double-hung windows, is a massive projecting architrave and cornice. 
This element -at first glance appears but of place, giving the 
impression that the top two levels were added after initial construc­ 
tion. The present exterior facade, however, is original. Its 
unusual design is the result of erecting only five levels of a 
projected twelve-story building. If the building had been completed 
as designed, the projecting architrave would have formed a distinctive 
horizontal band near the base instead of an unusual cornice near the 
roof.

The exterior facade is in near-original condition. The only 
alteration has been the replacement of^window units at ground level. 
On the upper floors the windows are original wooden double-hung 
units. ;The stone and tile also are in, good condition. The interior 
of the building has been changed extensively, undergoing remodelling 
in 1932, 1947,, and 1951. The original meeting hall on the second 
floor has been altered radically, with lowered ceiling and removal 
of the sta£e.. , .. ,   .
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Elks Lodge Building is important to the history of Oklahoma 
City and the state in several ways. One, it is an architectural 
oddity, the result of completing only five levels of a projected 

1 twelve-story building. Another reason for its significance is the 
association between the building and its owners, yhe first owner, 
was the Elks Lodge of Oklahoma' City; the second was General William 
S. Key, military hero and civic leader"lii Oklahoma; the third was 
Oklahoma Natural Gas Company, the largest distributor of natural 
gas in the state. Each of these owners, operating from the Elks 
Lodge Building, played significant roles in the development and 
history of Oklahoma.

The Benevolent and Protective Order of the Elks organized their 
first lodge in Oklahoma City in 1898. For the next twenty-seven 
years the order occupied rental space in lieu of a permanent lodge. 
This problem was solved in 1925 wh£ri general economic prosperity 
coincided with an upsurge in social and fraternal organizations, 
prompting a fund-raising campaign for a new building. With more 
than $500,000 pledged, the Elks Lodge began plans for the structure.

Designed by the architectural firm of Sorey, Hill, and Sorey, 
the structure was to be a twelve-story building with Italian Renaissance 
features. Begun in March of 1926, the progress of construction was 
halted after erection of the fifth level, however, due to lack of 
sufficient funding. Although the projecting architrave between the 
3rd and 4th levels seemed out of place, the architects and owners 
agreed to terminate the building at the fifth floor. Riding the 
crest of fraternal activity during the latter 1920s, the Elks Lodge 
prospered in their new building for the next five years, until the 
economic depression adversely affected membership roles and the lodge's 
ability to raise money for maintenance of the large building. 
As a result, the Elks sold their lodge building in 1932 to General 
William S. Key.

(cont.)
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By 1932 Key was one of Oklahoma's leading military and business 
figures, having attained the rank of General of the Oklahoma National 
Guard and the reputation as a good businessman. He had initially 
gained fame during World War I, when he fought in four major battles 
as a colonel in the American Expeditionary Force in France. After 
the war he returned to Oklahoma and his business interests. By 1932 
he had accumulated extensive oil field properties, an oil and gas 
distributing company, and several farms. To house his enterprises and 
to invest some of his earnings, he purchased the Elks Lodge. General 
Key remodeled the auditorium on the second level to accomodate office 
space, but did not alter the exterior.facade. With his corporate 
offices occupying only one floor, Key leased the other floors to the 
Oklahoma Natural Gas Company.

Although ONG did not enter the Oklahoma City market until 1928, 
the utility company had been organized in 1906 by Dennis Flynn, who 
had been territorial delegate to the U. S. Congress, and C. B. Ames, 
his law partner. To 1906 most towns in Oklahoma, including Oklahoma 
City, received only manufactured gas, an expensive and inefficient 
derivative of oil; ONG was organized to transport natural gas, which 
was plentiful in the oil fields of northeastern Oklahoma, to the towns 
and cities of the state. The first pipeline constructed by ONG con­ 
nected the Hogshooter gas field near Nowata with Tulsa. In 1906 a 
pipeline costing $1,700,000 was laid to Oklahoma City; on December 
28, 1907, the first natural gas flowed into Oklahoma City. Natural 
gas was essential to the growth of Oklahoma City, for it was 
inexpensive, efficient, and clean burning. Thereafter, this cheap 
source of energy served as added incentive to lure businesses to 
Oklahoma City.

By 1928 ONG distributed natural gas in more than fourty cities, 
but the company only transported gas to Oklahoma City, for distribution 
was monopolized by Oklahoma Gas and Electric Company. That year, 
however, 0,G, & E sold all distribution facilities to ONG for 
$13,600,000, making ONG the largest gas dealer in the state. With this 
acquisition ONG moved many of its operations personnel to Oklahoma 
City. To house them, ONG in 1932 leased office space from General 
William S. Key in the old Elks Lodge Building; ONG purchased the 
building in 1947 and have been there since that time.

(cont.)



Form No 10-300a 
(Hev 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

CONTI NU ATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER 8 PAGE

The contributions of the natural gas industry to the economic 
development of Oklahoma City and the state are undeniable. As the 
largest of the state's gas distributors, ONG has played a major 
role in that development. As the district headquarters for ONG, and 
as the temporary corporate home of General Key, the old Elks Lodge 
Building has become one of the most important structures in Oklahoma 
City. When combined with its architectural significance, the old 
Elks Lodge Building assumes a significance which should be 
preserved.
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along the curb to a point 10 f beyond the west face of the building. 
Then proceed north 164' through a parking lot 10' west of the building 
to a point in the middle of the alley on the north side of the building 
Then proceed 125 f east down the middle of the alley to the curb on 
Harvey Avenue. Then proceed 164' south along the curb to the point 
of departure.


